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Port Authority of New York and New Jersey 
Master Plan Design Competition Frequently 

Asked Questions 

Revised 1/30/14 
 

 
Q: May Contestants work with other firms for joint submissions? 

 
A: There is no restriction for teaming, though Contestants must designate a Lead Team Member. The 
Design Fee, if awarded, will be issued to the Lead Team Member. 

 
Q: May a subcontractor or sub consultant participate on more than one team for the Competitions? 

 
A: Yes. 

 
Q: May a Contestant send in more than one submission for the Initial and Final Submission? 

A: Contestants with alternate proposals are encouraged to submit under one Submission. 

Q: Can Contestants submit a Letter of Intent after the December 15, 2014 deadline? 
 

A: A Letter of Intent is required in order to be considered a Contestant.  However, requests to submit a 
later Letter of Intent will be considered. The Port Authority will send a confirmation of receipt and 
acceptance of your Letter of Intent. 

 
Q: The design solicitation document notes qualifications for the Contestants. Are those pre-requisites 
to participate in the competition? 

 
A: The experience in the design solicitation document is not intended to preclude participation from any 
firm. Please keep in mind that the evaluation criteria do consider qualifications. 

 
Q: Do existing projects with the Port Authority and or / existing proposal submissions impact a firm’s 
ability to submit proposals? 

 
A:  No. Firms that are currently performing work for the Port Authority are not precluded from 
participating in any of the design competitions. However, firms may not utilize any non-public 
information in the preparation of their Contest submissions.  This restriction is applicable to firms that 
may be performing work on Port Authority projects as a prime or subconsultant, as well as firms that 
have participated, or are currently participating in other solicitations.  Use of such non-public 
information in a Contest submission could result in a submission being disqualified and may also violate 
other confidentiality obligations, such as Non-Disclosure Agreements previously executed in connection 
with other Port Authority matter(s). 

 
Q: Will Contestants be precluded from future solicitations if they were to make a submission in the 
Design Competition? 

 
A: No. 
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Q: What effect will the competition and winning designs have on the ongoing Central Terminal 
Redevelopment at LaGuardia Airport? 

 
A: Proposals should feel free to take a “blank slate” approach and assume an open foot print if they 
desire or assume current facilities and terminals as is or with suggested modifications and rehabilitation. 
The existing RFP for LaGuardia Airport’s Central Terminal Building will continue concurrent to the master 
plan competition, and, if need be, the CTB winning project can be can be modified in response to the 
Competition finalists’ winning designs. 

 
Q: What expenses should Contestants track to ensure they are eligible for the Design Fee? 

 
Please review the design solicitation for general guidance.  A “Design Fee” agreement will be provided at 
a later date. Please continue to monitor the design competition website 

 
Q: Who is on the Advisory Panel? 

 
A: Members of the Advisory Panel will be selected by the Governor’s Office of the State of New York. 

 
Q: How do I provide my submissions for December 31st and February 2nd? 

 
A: Submittal Instructions will be posted on December 16, 2014 on the design competition website. 

 
Q: What material is expected at the Initial Submission, due December 31, 2014? 

 
A: Submittal Instructions will be posted on December 16, 2014 on the design competition website, 
specific requirements for deliverables. 

 
Q: If my team submitted a design proposal in the LGA CTB RFP, can we use it for the submission to the 
master plan design competition? 

 
A: No.  Firms may not base their Design Competition Submittal on non-public or Protected Information 
(as defined in the Port Authority’s Information Security Handbook dated October 15, 2008, corrected as 
of November 14, 2013).  All Contestants will be required to submit a certification as to same with their 
Final Submission. 

 
Q: If I have any questions between now and the submission deadline, whom do I contact? 

 
A: Additional questions that may arise can be sent to  airportdesign@panynj.gov. A “Frequently Asked 
Questions” will be posted on the website. 
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Q: Will our intermediate submissions be posted online for all other contestants to see?  The Brief states 
"Submissions will be posted on www.ny.gov".  We have concerns about other contestants having 
access to our concepts before the final submission at the end of January. [Added 12/23/14] 

A: As stated in the competition rules, respondents should anticipate that submissions will be posted on 
www.ny.gov.  They may be posted in whole, or in part, and Contestants should submit accordingly.  Prior 
to any public posting, consideration will be given for any potential competitive impact to the final 
submission round. 

Q: Will we be provided with the Contestant Identifier, or will you assign a contestant identifier before 
submissions are due? [Added 12/23/14] 

A: It is not currently anticipated that the Contestant Identifier will be provided before submissions are 
due. 

Q:  Are there any CAD files of the existing airport and any planned future upgrades available for 
circulation?  [Added 12/23/14] 

A: No. 

Q: The final submittal asks for a separate Bound Submittal without any firm name or logo with each 
deliverable sought in the Submission Requirements.  Submission Requirements asks for “a narrative of 
Contestant firm and staff experience” and a “list of Firm/Proposer affiliates”.   We were required to 
submit the “a narrative of Contestant firm and staff experience” and a “list of Firm/Proposer affiliates” 
with the interim submission.  Are we required to submit again with our final deliverable, and how can 
we submit “a narrative of Contestant firm and staff experience” and a “list of Firm/Proposer affiliates” 
without “any firm name or logo”? 

A: Firms are not required to resubmit “a narrative of Contestant firm and staff experience” and a “list of 
Firm/Proposer affiliates” with their final submission so long as it was included with the initial 
submission.   All other submission requirements remain for the separate Bound Submittal.    

Q: We are submitting in partnership with another firm. Do we each submit BQQ's or only our firm as 
the local firm?   

A: Each firm that comprises a Contestant team is required to submit a BQQ.   
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